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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP# 202411206 Provision of Telecommunications Relay Service

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Telecommunications Relay Service Council

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	January 13, 2025

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	January 16, 2025

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	January 24, 2025, no later than 11:59 pm local time 

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 8

A.
Billing of TRS Users
	“The successful Bidder shall ensure that the following billing principles for traditional TRS calls:

4.
The customers' carrier of choice shall bill the TRS users for long-distance outgoing calls placed by the TRS user. Users shall only be billed for actual talk time. No charges shall be assessed for CA work time. 

5.
Users shall only be billed by their carrier of choice for those calls that would ordinarily generate charges if the calls were directly dialed from the originating telephone line including local toll, long-distance and international calls. 

6.
The successful Bidder shall provide billing information to the appropriate entity for calls placed via the callers' participating carrier(s) of choice. Nevertheless, the successful Bidder shall have no obligation to provide billing information to a carrier that does not participate or ceases to participate in Carrier of Choice. The successful bidder shall have no obligation to provide billing information to a carrier participating in Carrier of Choice where the TRS customer does not make a timely designation of its preferred carrier before the CA places the call via a Carrier of Choice.”

(Potential bidder) respectfully request(s) the state to remove this requirement based on the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) permanent waiver of long-distance Carrier of Choice (COC) and billing options. Maine Relay Service users receive domestic and international calling at no charge.

	
	Answer

	
	The Council is willing to remove this requirement in the final agreement based on the FCC waiver.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 17

A. 1. Contract Document (Part VI Contract Administration and Conditions)
	Would the State confirm exactly which form of Service Contract will be applicable to this RFP? 

Will this be the IT Service Contract or the Service Contract? 

Which Terms and Conditions listed on the Maine Division of Procurement Services website provided in the RFP will apply to this opportunity?

	
	Answer

	
	Service Contract, with T&Cs of Service Contract. This provision is not for an IT service.


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Will the Department please provide an expected contract award date?

	
	Answer

	
	Late February/early March.


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Will the Department please provide the current rate it is paying for TRS?

	
	Answer

	
	$8,000/month


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 6, Section 1.D
	Contract Renewal: Will the Department please confirm that all contract renewals must be mutually agreed upon by both the Department and the Contractor?

	
	Answer

	
	This is correct, contract renewals must be mutually agreed upon by both parties.


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 7, Section II.B
	Will the Department please provide traffic data by month for the past two years, listing the number of session and conversation minutes for both Intrastate and Interstate calls for TRS. 

•
Can this data be broken out to show Spanish and STS usage?

	
	Answer

	
	JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAY

JUN

JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

Interstate 2023 (# of calls)
11
12
3
3
6
9
14
8
23
22
13
10
Interstate 2024 (# of calls)
16
10
7
2
14
8
4
4
11
2
0
N/A
Intrastate 2023 (# of calls)
40
14
19
15
13
22
23
13
26
13
8
14
Intrastate 2024 (# of calls)
16
9
9
8
10
13
5
9
4
14
8
N/A
Conversation Minutes 2023

952
951
897
1,495
899
975
1,035
1,251
1,173
1,987
1,225
1,116
Conversation Minutes 2024
1,349
773
1,060
1,992
2,078
1,275
537
820
802
755
852
N/A
Session Minutes 2023

1,785
1,550
1,560
2,101
1,462
1,584
1,685
1,863
1,756
2,573
1,901
1,771
Session Minutes 2024

1,868
1,286
1,584
2,751
2,907
1,735
947
1,238
1,185
1,167
1,426
N/A
*The Vendor only provided # of calls Local/Interstate/Intrastate (Local data available upon request). Please find the number of each type w/ total session minutes below:

*STS Usage approximately .2% of calls in 2024. The Department does not have information regarding calls in Spanish. 


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 7, Section II.C
	This section states that “the designated outreach entity shall have primary outreach obligations for the State and the successful Bidder will be required to coordinate with the outreach provider to perform outreach services.”

Will the Department please confirm that all outreach services will continue to be performed by the Department’s designated outreach entity and that outreach services are not included in this contract?

	
	Answer

	
	This is correct, outreach services are not included in this contract.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Can you please provide greater explanation of your expectations related to any required subcontracting to minority-owned, women-owned, or other types or categories of small or disadvantaged businesses? For example, what is required with the proposal, and what is required to comply during the term of the contract?

	
	Answer

	
	No expectations.


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Are bidders permitted to deviate in any way from any manner of quoting fees you may be expecting? For example, if there is a pricing page in the RFP, can bidders submit an alternate fee structure? If there is no pricing page in the RFP, do you have any preference for how bidders should quote fees or can bidders create their own pricing categories?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders are permitted to deviate.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Please describe your level of satisfaction with your current or recent vendor(s) for the same purchasing activity, if applicable.

	
	Answer

	
	Very satisfied.


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Has the current contract gone full term?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Have all options to extend the current contract been exercised?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Who is the incumbent, and how long has the incumbent been providing the requested services?

	
	Answer

	
	T-Mobile (formerly Sprint) has been providing services since 2019.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	To what extent will the location of the bidder’s proposed location or headquarters have a bearing on any award?

	
	Answer

	
	None.


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	How are fees currently being billed by any incumbent(s), by category, and at what rates?

	
	Answer

	
	$8,000/month for all Relay Services except Captioned Telephone.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What estimated or actual dollars were paid last year, last month, or last quarter to any incumbent(s)?

	
	Answer

	
	See answer to #15.


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Please provide a complete list of the means of inbound and outbound communication the call center must accommodate.

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must provide all types of TRS calls as required by the FCC mandatory minimum standards, as well as Relay Conference captioning.


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Is previous experience with any specific customer information systems, phone systems, or software required?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must be prepared and able to provide intrastate Telecommunications Relay Services at the minimum standards.


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the minimum required total call capacity?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must be able to ensure adequate TRS Facility staffing to provide callers with efficient access under projected calling volumes, 24 hours a day for every calendar day of the year, on a statewide basis. See answer to #6 for data on call volumes.


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the minimum simultaneous inbound call capacity?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders must be able to ensure adequate TRS Facility staffing to provide callers with efficient access under projected calling volumes, 24 hours a day for every calendar day of the year, on a statewide basis. See answer to #6 for data on call volumes.


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the maximum wait time?

	
	Answer

	
	The FCC requires that TRS providers must, except during network failure, answer 85 percent of all calls within 10 seconds, by any method which results in the caller's call immediately being placed, not put in a queue or on hold.


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the maximum hold time?

	
	Answer

	
	See answer above (#21).


	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What percentage of inbound calls must be answered by a live operator?

	
	Answer

	
	TRS providers must adhere to the mandatory minimum standards set by the FCC.


	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What percentage of calls must be resolved without a transfer, second call, or a return call?

	
	Answer

	
	TRS providers must adhere to the mandatory minimum standards set by the FCC.


	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the maximum percentage of calls that can be terminated by the caller without resolution?

	
	Answer

	
	There is no set percentage, as long as minimum standards are being met.


	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Is there a minimum or maximum number of operators and supervisors?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department isn’t requiring a particular minimum or maximum in this RFP. Bidders must be able to ensure adequate TRS Facility staffing to provide callers with efficient access under projected calling volumes, at the level and standards required by this RFP and the FCC.


	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What are the required language options?

	
	Answer

	
	English and Spanish.


	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the required degree of dedication for the call center? (Can the call center work on other contracts at the same time as this one)?

	
	Answer

	
	If the minimum service standards are being met, yes.


	29
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the required degree of dedication for the operators? (Can the operators assigned to this contract work on others at the same time as this one)?

	
	Answer

	
	If the minimum service standards are being met, yes.


	30
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What are the recording requirements for inbound and outbound phone calls and how long must recordings be maintained?

	
	Answer

	
	As mentioned previously, TRS providers must adhere to the mandatory minimum standards set by the FCC. CAs are prohibited, with a limited exception for STS CAs, from keeping records of the content of any conversation beyond the duration of a call.


	31
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What are the recording and storage requirements for non-phone communications?

	
	Answer

	
	TRS providers must adhere to the mandatory minimum standards set by the FCC, including call data collection requirements.


	32
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What was your average monthly call volume over the past year?

	
	Answer

	
	Approximately 1,500 Total Session Minutes per month.


	33
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the current number of seats for operators and supervisors at your existing call center?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not have access to this information.


	34
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the current average wait time for phone calls?

	
	Answer

	
	Approximately 2.5 seconds.


	35
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the current average handle time for phone calls and other types of communications?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not have access to this information.


	36
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What is the current average after-call work time for operators?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not have access to this information.


	37
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Over the past year, what is the percentage of calls received in English versus non-English?

	
	Answer

	
	According to the data provided to the Department, 100%.


	38
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Over the past year, what percentage of calls received were in Spanish?

	
	Answer

	
	According to the data provided to the Department, 0%.


	39
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What time of day, days of the week, or times of the year do calls typically peak?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not have access to this information.


	40
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 1

Cover Page
	Questions are due to the state no later than 11:59 p.m., local time on January 13, 2025, and the proposal submission deadline is January 24, 2025.

Answers to vendors’ questions are anticipated to be available on Friday, January 17, via state’s portal. (Seven days prior to the bid deadline)

Will the state extend the bid deadline to Friday, January 31?  This extension will give the bidders more time to complete their proposals once the answers are received.

	
	Answer

	
	The Department is not willing to extend the deadline at this time.


*The Department (Telecommunications Relay Service Council) has answered these questions to the best of its ability with the resources it is able to access.

